
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

READING MUNICIPAL 

LIGHT DEPARTMENT 
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 

 
REGULAR SESSION 

 

 

WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 20, 2021 

  



APPROVAL OF BOARD MINUTES 

 

 

ATTACHMENT 1 

  



June 18, 2020 Meeting



Town of Reading 
Meeting Minutes 

Page | 1 

2016-09-22 LAG 

Board - Committee - Commission - Council: 

RMLD Board of Commissioners 

Date:  2020-06-18 Time:  07:30 PM     

Building:  Reading Municipal Light Building Location:  Winfred Spurr Audio Visual Room

Address:  230 Ash Street Session:  Open Session 

Purpose:  General Business Version:  Final 

Attendees: Members - Present: 

Due to the pandemic and the March 12, 2020 Governor's Executive Order 
Suspending Certain Provisions of the Open Meeting Law, all particpants 
attended remotely.  
John Stempeck, Chair; David Talbot, Commissioner; Robert Coulter, 
Commissioner; Philip B. Pacino, Commissioner 

Members - Not Present: 

David Hennessy, Vice Chair 

Others Present: 

RMLD Staff: Coleen O'Brien, General Manager; Charles Underhill, Director of 
Integrated Resources; Wendy Markiewicz, Director of Business, Finance, and 
Utility Technology; Tracy Schultz, Executive Assistant 

Jason Small, Citizens' Advisory Board 

Karen Herrick, Select Board  

Gail Page, Green Sanctuaries 
Lynn Champion  
James Satterthwaite 

Minutes Respectfully Submitted By:  Philip B. Pacino, Secretary Pro Tem 

Topics of Discussion: 

Call Meeting to Order 
Chair Stempeck called the meeting to order and read RMLD’s Code of Conduct. Chair Stempeck 
announced that the meeting is being videotaped via Zoom for distribution to the community 
television stations in North Reading, Lynnfield, and Wilmington.  

Chair Stempeck asked Mr. Pacino to serve as Board Secretary. 

Public Comment 
Gail Page, a Woburn resident, introduced herself and explained that she is representing Green 
Sanctuaries, a church group. Ms. Page stated that many members of Green Sanctuaries and the 
Unitarian Universalist Church are residents in RMLD’s service territory. 



 

Page | 2 

Monthly Meeting of RMLD Commissioner with Reading Select Board 
Chair Stempeck proposed that a member of the Board attend the meeting of the Select Board 
each month and report on what is going on at the RMLD. Chair Stempeck explained that the 
intention is to foster a good working relationship between the two bodies.  
Discussion on Renewable Energy 
Mr. Talbot stated that he researched the carbon consequences of the power plants that are only 
activated at peak usage times. The plant in Ludlow burns Number Two heating oil, which has a 
carbon emission that is about 50 percent more per megawatt hour than natural gas. This means 
it is necessary to drive home the importance of the peak warnings that RMLD issues. Ms. Page 
expressed her enthusiasm for this idea. In terms of renewable energy, Mr. Talbot stated he would 
like to better what the definitions are of green, renewable, sustainable, and non-carbon, and to 
set a percentage goal and to understand the consequences in terms of cost of different options. 
This would include the impact on rates. Mr. Talbot stated he would like the public to tell the 
Commission what to do. Ms. O’Brien stated the chair of the Climate Action Committee met with 
her and Mr. Underhill and it was a very informative exchange. The meeting led to RMLD offering a 
rebate on electrical panel upgrades. Ms. O’Brien stated the meetings happen once a quarter 
and asked Ms. Page if she would be interested in attending. Ms. Page answered in the affirmative.  
  
Approval of Board Minutes  
Mr. Pacino made a motion, seconded by Mr. Coulter, that the Board approve the meeting 
minutes of December 2, 2019, January 7, 2020, February 27, 2020 on the recommendation of the 
General Manger. 
Roll Call Vote: Mr. Talbot: Aye; Mr. Pacino: Aye; Chair Stempeck: Aye; Mr. Coulter: Aye. 
Motion Carried: 4:0:0 (one absent).  
 
General Manager’s Report 
Ms. O’Brien stated the sealing of the roof has been completed. The customer parking lot upgrade 
has provided more spaces and will allow RMLD to lock the back gate to comply with NERC. When 
RMLD had an OSHA audit done in February, it was determined that the wooden deck in the back 
of the building needed to be replaced. To save money, it has been converted into a patio.  The 
stairs need to be poured and then that project will be completed.  
 
RMLD Response to COVID-19 
Ms. O’Brien stated the RMLD building is still closed to the public. Plexiglass shields have been 
installed around cubicles. There are red dot stickers on the floor to ensure proper social 
distancing.  
 
Twenty-Year Agreement  
Ms. O’Brien stated that Ms. Rybak has done a great job and that three of the four Towns have 
voted to extend the agreement. Lynnfield’s next Town Meeting will be in the fall and the 
agreement will be voted on then. 
 
Quarterly Goal Review 
Chair Stempeck asked Ms. Schultz to coordinate a meeting time with the Commissioners to 
discuss Ms. O’Brien’s goals.  
 
Integrated Resources Division 
Green Communities 
Ms. O’Brien stated that towns that are interested in Green Communities can apply for the 
program. To qualify, the town served by the municipal light plant (MLP) must have one investor-
owned utility (IOU) metered customer. However, all four towns served by RMLD would have to join 
and all four towns would need to have an IOU meter, or all four towns must pay into the trust. Each 
town would need to work with the state. The towns can request that RMLD help facilitate the 
location of an IOU meter. Typically, the MLP should know if there is an IOU meter in its territory. 
Because the RMLD falls under home rule of deregulation, IOU service of MLP customers should 
have been brought to the attention of the MLP by the customer or the IOU. RMLD asked National 
Grid and Eversource to run a billing inquiry. Eversource didn’t show anything. National Grid hasn’t 
responded yet. Ms. O’Brien stated the she and Chair Stempeck have a phone call with the  



 

Page | 3 

Integrated Resources Division  
Green Communities  
Department of Energy Resources scheduled for June 23rd. Mr. Underhill provided an update on 
RMLD’s new rebate programs, including adding electric panel upgrades to the heat pump 
program (at the Climate Action Committee’s request), and the cordless yard equipment 
program. 
 
Integrated Resources 
Power Supply 
Mr. Underhill stated that all power supply costs are coming in below the budgeted amount due 
to the warmer-than-average winter. COVID-19 reductions have resulted in a 1.5 percent reduction 
in load: this is lower than the eight percent that was initially speculated. February capacity costs 
came in significantly lower than what was budgeted. Mr. Underhill stated that this is because RMLD 
makes a lump sum payment to Braintree for the Watson unit in February, and Energy New England 
put it in the budget-Mr. Underhill stated the issue with the relationship between budget and actual 
will be squared away. Mr. Underhill stated that because the loads have been down, peaks have 
been down, resulting in lower transmission expenses. Mr. Underhill reviewed the resource portfolio 
and explained that because the loads have been down. RMLD has been selling back to the 
market. Mr. Underhill then discussed RMLD’s power supply: RMLD has engaged resources that fall 
under the Renewable Portfolio Standard or the Clean Energy Standard. The latter deals with 
carbon-free generation rather than renewable. Mr. Underhill explained fifteen percent of power 
supply is kept open as risk mitigation for market and price volatility. Mr. Underhill stated that the 
graph shows what the delivered price of energy would be if RMLD were to sell its RECs or retire its 
RECs. Currently, RMLD is able to keep its energy costs by selling the RECs at under $40 a megawatt 
hour. This directly translates out to the retail price. If RMLD were to retire the RECs, the price goes 
to just under $50 a megawatt hour, or five cents a kilowatt hour. That’s a one penny increase to 
the retail rate, which would result in a 7.5 percent rate increase. That is the high and low end. This 
can change based on how many and which RECs are retired to meet the terms of the Golden Bill 
(once it is passed by the legislature). Mr. Underhill discussed the portfolio requirements of the 
Renewable Energy Standard, the Clean Energy Standard, and the Golden bill. The Golden Bill 
starts out with lower requirements but then has an accelerated slope that then catches up to the 
Clean Energy Standard. Mr., Underhill explained that selling RECs keeps costs down, which has 
allowed RMLD to be more aggressive about securing contracts going forward. This gives RMLD 
flexibility to meet and exceed the Golden Bill requirements. Mr. Underhill then discussed COVID-
19 impacts on retail revenue. Base revenues for 2019 came in at $26,766465. 2020’s projected retail 
revenues are $25,975,909, which is a difference that is just shy of $800,000. This is a net impact of a 
three percent erosion of revenue. The budget for 2020 was just over $29 million. That’s a difference 
of $3 million and a ten percent impact. However, this is offset by a reduction of kilowatt hours 
purchased. Chair Stempeck remarked that the weather had a much larger impact than COVID.  
 
Financial Update  
Ms. Markiewicz explained that the financial audit is ongoing due to COVID. It has taken longer 
than usual but should be in draft form soon. Ms. Markiewicz included highlights of Calendar Year 
2019, stating that RMLD finished the year with a 9.33 percent rate of return. This was 1.33 percent 
over the allowed eight percent. There are multiple factors that caused this: RMLD was under-
budget, the weather was unusually mild which resulted in reduced costs, there are multiple job 
vacancies, the timing of energy conservation resources, the closing of construction jobs, and 
interest income all contributed to RMLD ending up under-budget. Ms. Markiewicz explained that 
RMLD looked at the Strategic Plan to determine what to do with those funds. It was decided to 
aid customers and transfer the $1,077,737 to the Rate Stabilization fund. The Strategic Plan 
involves the balancing of multiple pieces, including the base revenue impact, the rate of return, 
funding the below-the-line Town of Reading obligation, funding capital projects, maintaining the 
Operating Fund at two to three months-worth of available cash, and maintaining the Rate 
Stabilization Fund balance. It was decided that RMLD will supplement any rate increase for 
Calendar Year 2021 by taking $2 million out of the Rate Stabilization Fund. RMLD will continue to 
supplement a portion of the rate increase for CY 2022 and 2023 (approximately $550,000 each 
year). RMLD will continue to stay on target for all capital projects. Ms. Markiewicz then discussed 
operating cash in relation to operating expenses: RMLD ended the year with almost three  



 

Page | 4 

Financial Update  
months of operating cash. Ms. Markiewicz explained the Rate Stabilization fund started with $7 
million. RMLD added the $1,077,000. There will be no change in CY 2020. Ms. Markiewicz 
emphasized that nothing is set in stone: the strategic planning can change. The Capital Fund 
balances were then reviewed.  Mr. Satterthwaite asked if the 7.5 increase is on the total 
residential bill.  Mr. Underhill affirmed.  
 
Engineering and Operations Report  
Mr. Jaffari began by discussing step-down upgrades in the North Main Street and Lowell Street 
area in Lynnfield. It is a large conversion project that involves 55 poles. So far 27 poles have been 
replaced and Verizon has been very cooperative. Mr. Jaffari then discussed pad-mount 
switchgear upgrades at industrial parks. Nine unites have been replaced: 20 more remain. Five 
units will be arriving in the summer. These provide power to commercial and industrial customers. 
Maintenance programs, including equipment inspections, were reviewed. Due to COVID, the only 
transformers that are currently being replaced are ones that don’t require an outage. Systemwide, 
38 percent of the transformers are over 25 years old. This doesn’t mean the transformers will fail, 
but they are up for replacement. The new transformers are more efficient than the older 
equipment. Primary metering inspection and testing was reviewed. There are 85 installations 
systemwide: ten installations have been completed. A contractor will inspect the remaining 
installations. Through April, capital spending was $2,047,259, with a total of $11.5 million budgeted: 
$9.5 million remains. $2 million of that is for meter replacement and $600,000 is for substation land. 
Double poles were discussed. RMLD’s reliability was well below the regional and national averages 
(that is a good thing). The main cause of outages in May were storms and trees. Equipment failures 
are decreasing because the maintenance programs are working.  
    
General Discussion 
Meeting dates were discussed.  
 
Adjournment         
At 9:08 p.m., Mr. Pacino made a motion, seconded by Mr. Coulter, that the Board go into 
executive session to consider the purchase of real property and to return to regular session for the 
sole purpose of adjournment.  
Roll call vote: Mr. Coulter: Aye; Mr. Pacino: Aye; Chair Stempeck: Aye; Mr. Talbot: Aye.  
Motion Carried: 4:0:0 (one absent 
 
At 9:18 p.m., Mr. Pacino made a motion, seconded by Mr. Coulter, that the Board adjourn. 
Roll call vote: Mr. Coulter: Aye; Mr. Pacino: Aye; Chair Stempeck: Aye; Mr. Talbot: Aye.  
Motion Carried: 4:0:0 (one absent).  
 
 

A true copy of the RMLD Board of Commissioners minutes 
as approved by a majority of the Commission. 

 
 
 

Philip B. Pacino, Secretary Pro Tem 
RMLD Board of Commissioners 

 



July 23, 2020, Minutes



 
Town of Reading 
Meeting Minutes 

 

Page | 1 

2016-09-22 LAG 

Board - Committee - Commission - Council: 
 

      RMLD Board of Commissioners             
 

Date:  2020-07-23 Time:  07:30 PM      
 

Building:  Reading Municipal Light Building Location:  Winfred Spurr Audio Visual Room 
 

Address:  230 Ash Street Session:  Open Session 
 

Purpose:  General Business Version:  Final 
 

Attendees: Members - Present: 
 

Due to the pandemic and the March 12, 2020 Governor's Executive Order 
Suspending Certain Provisions of the Open Meeting Law, all particpants 
attended remotely.  
John Stempeck, Chair; David Hennessy, Vice Chair; David Talbot, 
Commissioner; Robert Coulter, Commissioner; Philip B. Pacino, 
Commissioner 
 

Members - Not Present: 
 

      
 

Others Present: 
 

RMLD Staff: Coleen O'Brien, General Manager; Charles Underhill, Director of 
Integrated Resources; Wendy Markiewicz, Director of Business, Finance, and 
Utility Technology; Tracy Schultz, Executive Assistant 
 
Jason Small, Citizens' Advisory Board 
 
Karen Herrick, Select Board 
 
Zackary Fentross, CPA, Melanson   
 
Gail Page, 55 Montvale Avenue, Woburn, Chair of Green Sanctuary and 
Coordinator of the Greater Reading Alliance for Clean Energy (GRACE) 
Lynn Champion, 8 Franklin Avenue, Wilmington, GRACE  
James Satterthwaite, 8 Hunt Street, Reading 
Geoffrey Coram, 31 Ridge Road, Reading  
Jeremy Wahlman-Krogh, 175 Lowell Street, Reading 
Tom Mottl, 93 Oak Street, Reading 
Ann Mottl, 93 Oak Street, Reading 
Tay Evans Rhoads, 59 Howard Street, Reading, GRACE 
David Zeke, 163 Pearl Street, Reading 
Martha Moore, 102 Sanborn Lane, Reading, Conservation Commission 
Bruce MacKenzie, 102 Sanborn Lane, Reading  
Caroline Whiting, 17 Chestnut Road, Reading  
David Kay, 54 Pratt Street, Reading 
 
 

Minutes Respectfully Submitted By:  Philip B. Pacino, Secretary Pro Tem 
 
 

Topics of Discussion: 
 
 

 



 

Page | 2 

Call Meeting to Order 
Chair Stempeck called the meeting to order and read RMLD’s Code of Conduct. Chair Stempeck 
announced that the meeting is being videotaped via Zoom for distribution to the community 
television stations in North Reading, Lynnfield, and Wilmington.  
 
Chair Stempeck stated that Mr. Pacino would serve as Board Secretary and explained that public 
comment would open following the report of the audit committee.  
 
Presentation of the Calendar Year 2019 Audit 
Mr. Fentross introduced himself and explained that the financial statements are not presented on 
a comparative basis because the prior audit was for a six-month period. This was due to RMLD 
moving from a fiscal year ending June 30 to a calendar year ending December 31. Comparative 
financials will be presented starting with the December 31, 2020 audit.  
 
Mr. Fentross stated that the RMLD had positive operating results for calendar year 2019, a well-
funded OPEB trust fund, and no management letter.  RMLD received a clean opinion, which is the 
best opinion that can be received from an independent audit and is the same opinion that the 
has been received in prior years.   
 
While Ms. Schultz pulled up Mr. Fentross’ presentation, Chair Stempeck had all meeting 
participants introduce themselves.  
 
Mr. Fentross continued with his presentation and discussed the Statement of Net Position. The 
capital assets net of accumulated depreciation has a balance of about $79,084,000, which is 
approximately a $1.8 million increase from the previous year. The increase is primarily due to 
improvements in infrastructure. The Department spent $6.5 million in total capital asset additions, 
but that was softened by $4.5 million in depreciation expense, which leaves, which results in the 
$1.9 million increase. Major capital asset additions that took place in calendar year 2019 included 
$1.1 million for new poles and fixtures, $2 million on overhead conductors, and $1.3 million on 
underground conduit and devices. Mr. Fentross then discussed non-current liabilities. The net 
pension liability has a balance of about $14,610,000 and represents the Department’s portion (28 
percent) of the total unfunded liability for the Reading Contributory Retirement System. The system 
as a total is at 72 percent funded. The average in the Commonwealth is 65 to 70 percent. This is a 
$3.8 million increase from the prior year, which is due to the retirement system’s investments 
coming in at $13.4 million less than what was anticipated. The net OPEB liability has a balance of 
about $7,094,000, which is a decrease of about $280,000 compared to the prior year. RMLD has 
set aside funds to fund about 36 percent of that liability. This is a strong position for RMLD: most 
towns in the Commonwealth have only funded one to ten percent. Other light departments in 
Massachusetts have funded between 20 to 40 percent of that liability. Mr. Fentross then discussed 
purchase power expenses, which has a balance of about $61,027,000. This is a decrease of about 
$9 million from the prior year. Electric sales under operating revenues has a balance of roughly 
$89,475,000. RMLD had savings on the cost of power that it purchased and passed those savings 
on to the customers. Mr. Fentross explained that the change in net position has a balance of 
approximately $4,319,000. This is essentially RMLD’s net income. RMLD had strong operating results.  
 
Report of the Audit Committee 
Mr. Pacino stated that the Audit Committee met the prior week and Mr. Fentross made a more 
detailed presentation. Some questions were raised, and Mr. Fentross wrote a memorandum 
answering those inquiries. The Committee recommended that the report be accepted by the 
Commissioners. Mr. Pacino made a motion, seconded by Vice Chair Hennessy, that the Board of 
Commissioners accept the Audit Report from Melanson, Calendar Year ended December 31, 
2019 as presented and as amended by the Audit Committee, on the recommendation of the 
General Manager. 
 
Roll call vote: Mr. Pacino: Aye; Chair Stempeck: Aye; Vice Chair Hennessy: Aye; Mr. Talbot: Aye; 
Mr. Coulter: Aye.  
Motion Carried: 5:0:0 
 



 

Page | 3 

Mr. Fentross thanked RMLD staff and left the meeting.  
 
Public Comment 
Mr. Coram stated that he had slides to convey his points, which he sent to Ms. Schultz that morning. 
Mr. Coram stated Ms. Schultz told him she needed meeting materials 48 hours in advance. Ms. 
Schultz affirmed. Mr. Coram stated that he was shocked to see the suggestion on RMLD’s Twitter 
to raise the temperature on air conditioning from 70 degrees to 73 degrees. Mr. Coram stated the 
RMLD webpage suggests a temperature of 68 degrees. Mr. Coram stated EnergyStar 
recommends a temperature of 78 degrees. Mr. Coram stated that he emailed Ms. Mulvaney at 
the end of June and she did make a change to the Twitter graphic. Mr. Coram asked that the 
video on the RMLD website also be updated. The Commissioners agreed that this was a 
reasonable request.  
 
Mr. Satterthwaite stated that GRACE would like to make a request regarding RMLD’s Clean Energy 
Policy but would hold off on comment until item 9 (discussion of clean energy policy setting) on 
the agenda.  
 
Mr. Kay asked how the United Unitarian Church in Reading could add solar to its roof. Mr. Underhill 
explained that information regarding solar rebate opportunities is available on the RMLD website. 
The issue with the Church being a non-profit is that many of the incentives are provided through 
tax offsets. However, the Integrated Resources Department would be glad to discuss the filing 
process and available incentives. Mr. Underhill added that the video that Mr. Coram referenced 
earlier is in the process of being rerecorded.  
 
RMLD’s Response to COVID-19 
Ms. O’Brien explained that she has been keeping the Board and RMLD employees up to date on 
RMLD’s Emergency Operating Procedure. RMLD has been ahead of any potential safety issues. 
The management team meets every day. There are four areas of the Governor’s Order: staffing, 
hygiene, cleaning, and operating. RMLD is well within the limit of ten people per 1000 feet of 
accessible space. Plexiglass has been added to cubicles. Most of the administrative staff is 
working remotely.  
 
Integrated Resources Division  
Monthly power supply report 
Mr. Underhill began by stating loads are being tracked against the budget. For the first three 
months of the year, actuals ran below budgeted loads. These were pre-COVID 19 impacts. April 
and May also ran low: these months include COVID as a factor. June’s actual load was higher 
than the forecasted load. Mr. Underhill explained that RMLD was not as adversely impacted by 
COVID as had been initially projected. Purchase power expense is well below expected 
projections. Energy costs are holding slightly below what was budgeted. Capacity costs are 
usually fixed and have been running slightly below where they were projected to be. That is one 
of the larger contributors to the power supply market savings. Transmission costs are also below 
what was projected. This is because loads during peak time are down significantly. Mr. Underhill 
reviewed kilowatt hour purchases by resources. RMLD has been selling small quantities of power 
back to the market each month. Mr. Underhill discussed the projected outlook of the power supply 
through 2040, including non-carbon resources. The Commonwealth’s original Renewable Portfolio 
Standard, the Clean Energy Standard, and the proposed Golden Bill. In the coming years, RMLD 
is ahead of the curve in terms of its potential to meet any of these standards. RMLD is looking at 
having seventy percent of its portfolio being non-carbon in four years. RMLD has made aggressive 
efforts to obtain a non-carbon portfolio going forward.  
 
RECs report 
Mr. Underhill explained a valuation study for the Renewable Energy Certificates (RECs) that RMLD 
has in its portfolio was done. The RECs fall into three categories: Class I Class II and ‘Other.’ The 
‘Other’ are projects in Connecticut and Maine that don’t meet the Massachusetts threshold. Class 
I RECs are currently valued at about four and a half cents a kilowatt hour and Class II RECs are 
currently valued at about two cents per kilowatt hour.  
 



 

Page | 4 

Detailed breakdown of portfolio by RECs classification 
Mr. Underhill discussed the RECS that RMLD currently has control of in its portfolio.  
Integrated Resources Division  
Potential rate impacts of options for complying with RPS and Golden Bill  
Mr. Underhill presented a slide showing the estimated impacts of various portfolio options and 
legislative compliance on RMLD retail rates, including the impact of acquiring and retiring all RECs 
in the portfolio. 

 
Update on RMLD programs 
Mr. Underhill presented slides showing the amount spent on the RMLD/Department of Energy 
Resources (DOER) solar rebate program. There are still $85,000 of funds available. The program 
has been extended from June 2020 to the end of the year. So far there have been 28 participants 
receiving an average payout of $5,875. Mr. Underhill stated there are an estimated 15 project slots 
remaining.  
 
Mr. Underhill then provided an update on RMLD’s rebate programs, including the cordless yard 
equipment program, an electric panel upgrade program, and a heat pump program.  
 
Report on the Select Board Meeting 
Mr. Talbot stated the Select Board discussed coordinating a response when RMLD issues Shred the 
Peak alerts. Green Communities was also mentioned at the meeting.  
 
Discussion of clean energy policy setting  
Mr. Satterthwaite referenced item 3d on the draft sustainable energy policy, which states that the 
RMLD would adapt to the Clean Energy Standard (CES) and the Renewable Portfolio Standard 
(RPS), if required by the state legislature to do so. Mr. Satterthwaite stated that Mr. Underhill’s past 
presentations have shown that the RMLD has prepared for the contingency that municipals may 
ultimately need to adhere to the RPS and CES. Ms. Satterthwaite stated that GRACE believes that 
catching up with the rest of the state, in terms of clean energy, is the right thing to do, and should 
be done regardless of whether it is required by the legislature. Mr. Satterthwaite stated that GRACE 
requests that the RMLD adopt a policy of parity with the investor-owned utilities, hitting the same 
annual targets for renewable and clean energy, and reporting progress under exactly the same 
rules. GRACE IS advocating this policy for the following reasons:  

1. It’s not only simple, but comprehensive. The policy phrased this way immediately defines 
what types of energy are counted and what types are not counted. It automatically 
prohibits the double counting of renewable energy certificates, which has been a 
controversial topic. It spells out incremental improvement from year-to-year. It entails that 
the RMLD will hit new targets, if such targets are mandated for the rest of the state.  

2. As reasonable people, GRACE doesn’t feel that they can ask for more. Cost is always a 
factor, and the RMLD has multiple constituencies to please.  

3. GRACE was founded when two churches in town got together, and as people of 
conscience, don’t see how they can ask for less. The rules imposed on the IOUs are the 
only transparent standard against which the fairness of burden-sharing can be measured, 
relative to the rest of the state. The four towns served by the RMLD are relatively affluent 
with median family incomes between $114,000 and $125,000. The corresponding number 
for neighboring Woburn is $83,000, for the state as a whole, it’s $80,000, and for Lynn, which 
borders Lynnfield, it’s only $54,000. Mr. Satterthwaite stated that there should be moral 
clarity about this. It is not fair or just that less affluent neighbors should pull their weight in 
creating a cleaner energy supply, while we do less. Yes, municipal light plants have a 
different business model than investor-owned utilities, but there’s a simple bottom line at 
the customer level as far as how much is being individually paid and how much pollution 
is being created. This means customers are taking advantage of a legislative loophole in 
order to pay less by polluting more. 

4. A farsighted policy adopted by the RMLD now may have influence beyond the borders of 
the four towns. As the largest of the municipal light plants, and the only one serving four 
different towns, the RMLD is in a position to be a leader and to set an example.  

 



 

Page | 5 

Discussion of clean energy policy setting  
Chair Stempeck stated that the issue is one of cost. The IOUs rates are higher than RMLD’s. Chair 
Stempeck explained that for people who are on fixed incomes, a rate increase isn’t as easy to 
handle. RMLD’s charter is to provide reliable power to its service territory at the lowest possible 
cost. Ms. O’Brien added that the money that is made by selling RECs gets reinvested in low-risk 
projects. Municipals are getting together to make green projects happen. Mr. Underhill then 
stated that when RMLD began its electrification program, a commitment was made to acquire 
sufficient resources from non-carbon production. If the Commission decides to retire RECs, they 
will need to decide whether to vote for supplemental funds to continue aggressive requisition of 
non-carbon resources. Or, that would need to be slowed in order to strike a balance with rate 
costs. Chair Stempeck also mentioned RMLD has a large industrial customer that accounts for 12 
percent of RMLD’s load. Mr. Underhill added that the commercial/industrial sector accounts for 
about 60 percent of RMLD’s load. Chair Stempeck said that low electric rates attract and keep 
business to and in the area. Mr. Satterthwaite stated that in the short-term, GRACE is asking for 
reporting rather than action. Mr. Satterthwaite stated they would like to see how RMLD is doing 
compared to the IOUs. Ms. O’Brien explained that Mr. Underhill presents this information monthly. 
Mr. Satterthwaite stated sold RECs should be represented. Mr. Underhill states that he shows the 
potential for green based on the RECs that RMLD has. RMLD’s resource portfolio is in compliance 
with what the IOUs follow. Mr. Talbot asked if RMLD can try to move away from peakers (if used). 
Mr. Coulter explained that is determined by ISO-the power companies have no say.  

 
General Discussion  
Meeting dates were discussed.  
 
Executive Session 
At 8:57 p.m., Mr. Pacino made a motion, seconded by Vice Chair Hennessy, that the Board 
move into Executive Session to consider the purchase of real property, and to discuss the 
deployment of security personnel or devices, or strategies with respect thereto, and return to 
Regular Session for the sole purpose of adjournment. 
Roll call vote: Vice Chair Hennessy: Aye; Mr. Coulter: Aye; Mr. Pacino: Aye; Chair Stempeck: Aye; 
Mr. Talbot: Aye.  
Motion Carried: 5:0:0 
 
Adjournment        
At 9:52 p.m., Mr. Pacino made a motion, seconded by Vice Chair Stempeck, that the Board 
adjourn. 
Roll call vote: Vice Chair Hennessy: Aye; Mr. Coulter: Aye; Mr. Pacino: Aye; Chair Stempeck: Aye; 
Mr. Talbot: Aye.  
Motion Carried: 5:0:0 
 
 

A true copy of the RMLD Board of Commissioners minutes 
as approved by a majority of the Commission. 

 
 
 

Philip B. Pacino, Secretary Pro Tem 
RMLD Board of Commissioners 

 



August 20, 2020, Minutes













September 16, 2020, Minutes













October 22, 2020, Minutes











SUSTAINABILITY ENERGY POLICY REFORMATION:  

 3rd TRAINING SESSION 

 

 

ATTACHMENT 2 

  



Session 3 of Education for RMLD BoC and CAB - Policy 30 Update

Objectives of this third session:
1) Review highlights of prior sessions
2) Confirm that Roadmap 2050 intends to motivate buildings, transportation, and energy (IOUs and MLPs) to a common net zero non-carbon goal, along different paths
3) Understand that regulations can be tailored to accommodate that IOUs and MLPs operate differently due to size, scope, ownership, and mission
4) Understand what RPS / CES was intended for and how IOUs buy energy and certificates to comply
5) Understand how Roadmap 2050 is intended to drive net zero non-carbon compliance (MLPS and IOUs)
Note SB 2995 was vetoed Jan 14th and is an update of Roadmap 2050. 
In an effort to maintain consistency from prior sessions, Roadmap 2050 and SB 2995 are synonymous for this session

Expert guest speakers:
Patrick Woodcock - Commissioner - Massachusetts Department of Energy Resources
Robert Grace - President and Managing Director - Sustainable Energy Advantage, LLC

Moderated Q&A with external experts – Greg Phipps as moderator

a) Roadmap 2050 highlights and key objectives – Commissioner Woodcock 
b) RPS / CES highlights, program evolution, how IOU’s comply – Bob Grace 
c) Contrast of MLP and IOU businesses and how Roadmap 2050 accommodates both – Commissioner Woodcock 



FINANCIAL REPORT 

 

 

ATTACHMENT 3 

  





➢

➢

➢

❖

❖

❖

❖







Town of Reading, Massachusetts
Municipal Light Department

Statement of Net Assets 
11/30/2020 

2020 2019
ASSETS

Current:
    Unrestricted Cash $ 24,614,277 $ 20,697,366
    Restricted Cash         33,892,193         31,924,164 
    Restricted Investments           1,366,001           1,245,105 
    Receivables, Net           8,014,029           8,969,014 
    Prepaid Expenses           1,315,644           1,226,908 
    Inventory           2,028,924           1,812,646 
      Total Current Assets         71,231,067         65,875,203 

Noncurrent:
    Investment in Associated Companies              810,370              639,937 
    Capital Assets, Net         82,687,471         79,801,845 
      Total Noncurrent Assets         83,497,842         80,441,782 

    Deferred Outflows - Pension Plan           8,102,116           5,779,858 

TOTAL ASSETS       162,831,024       152,096,843 

LIABILITIES

Current
    Accounts Payable         11,269,676           7,378,081 
    Accrued Liabilities              374,015              431,035 
    Customer Deposits           1,398,341           1,307,630 
    Advances from Associated Companies              200,000              200,000 
    Customer Advances for Construction           1,847,311           2,070,051 
      Total Current Liabilities         15,089,344         11,386,797 

Non-current

    Accrued Employee Compensated Absences           2,151,067           2,354,824 
    Net OPEB Obligation           7,094,569           7,374,246 
    Net Pension Liability         14,610,001         10,781,819 
      Total Non-current Liabilities         23,855,637         20,510,889 

    Deferred Inflows - Pension Plan           1,964,276           2,105,560 

TOTAL LIABILITIES         40,909,257         34,003,246 

NET POSITION

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt         82,687,471         79,801,845 
Restricted for Depreciation Fund         10,556,099           8,937,315 
Restricted for Pension Trust           6,365,431           5,878,179 
Unrestricted         22,312,767         23,476,258 
TOTAL NET POSITION       121,921,767       118,093,597 
Total Liabilities and Net Assets       162,831,024       152,096,843 



Town of Reading, Massachusetts
Municipal Light Department

Business Type Proprietary Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets 

11/30/2020 

November November Year to Date Year to Date
Current Year Last Year Current Year Last Year

Operating Revenues

    Base Revenue $ 2,045,300 $ 2,058,502 $ 25,420,764 $ 24,926,119
    Fuel Revenue            2,083,084            1,984,454          23,419,518          25,136,654 
    Purchased Power Capacity & Transmission            2,381,024            2,310,172          29,992,222          31,766,703 
    Forfeited Discounts                 37,563                 44,509               750,337               739,673 
    Energy Conservation Revenue                 48,824                 49,269               593,436               588,530 
    NYPA Credit               (52,648)               (54,508)             (970,862)          (1,042,563)
      Total Operating Revenues            6,543,147            6,392,399          79,205,416          82,115,115 

Expenses

Power Expenes:

   547 Purchased Power Fuel            1,694,706            2,042,479          23,146,673          24,963,626 
   555 Purchased Power Capacity            1,367,619            1,677,541          16,754,980          19,501,502 
   565 Purchased Power Transmission               937,292               737,309          13,001,277          11,824,809 
      Total Purchased Power            3,999,616            4,457,328          52,902,930          56,289,937 

Operations and Maintenance Expenses:

   580 Supervision and Engineering                 82,162                 70,014               929,647               841,747 
   581 Station/Control Room Operators                 37,778                 64,498               444,043               464,218 
   582 Station Technicians                 49,055                 31,923               377,588               344,507 
   583  Line General Labor                 44,539                 49,531               517,043               317,405 
   585 Street Lighting 0 0 0                 59,998 
   586 Meter General                 13,581                 10,632               131,155               116,227 
   588 Materials Management                 30,834                 37,541               392,107               320,132 
   593 Maintenance of Lines - Overhead                 14,429                 27,133               287,639               401,050 
   593 Maintenance of Lines - Tree Trimming                 91,647                 37,294               444,961               462,591 
   594 Maintenance of Lines - Underground                   1,059                 (3,369)                 44,257                 77,643 
   595 Maintenance of Line - Transformers                 16,334                 47,272               159,604               122,947 
   598 Line General Leave Time Labor                 34,137               103,425               348,966               419,255 
      Total Operations and Maintenance Expenses               415,554               475,895            4,077,010            3,947,720 

General & Administration Expenses:

   902 Meter Reading                      558 0                   1,397                   2,834 
   903 Customer Collections               136,644                 91,326            1,180,083            1,146,677 
   904 Uncollectible Accounts                   8,750                   8,750                 96,250                 96,250 
   916 Energy Audit                 62,575                 43,738               558,374               486,797 
   916 Energy Conservation                   3,129                 85,696               662,809               559,877 
   920 Administrative and General Salaries               138,782               154,899            1,839,504            1,734,536 
   921 Office Supplies and Expense                      492                   1,108                   6,491                 11,736 
   923 Outside Services - Legal               126,155 0               432,629 0 
   923 Outside Services - Contract                 10,150                 37,466               273,212               540,860 
   923 Outside Services - Education                   5,631                   9,371                 38,386                 70,884 
   924 Property Insurance                 29,739                 29,016               353,644               319,671 
   925 Injuries and Damages 0                   2,467                   3,723                 65,581 
   926 Employee Pensions and Benefits               170,635               440,148            3,210,451            3,238,732 
   930 Miscellaneous General Expense                 51,029                 28,816               219,671               218,337 
   931 Rent Expense                 13,941                 13,990               191,159               190,917 
   933 Vehicle Expenses                  25,563                 19,219               186,695               275,241 
   933 Vehicle Expenses - Capital               (24,741)               (19,008)             (311,218)             (291,937)
   935 Maintenance of General Plant                 35,883                 23,591               484,699               393,007 
   935 Maintenance of Building & Garage                 59,850                 84,771            1,027,378               743,018 
      Total General & Administration Expenses               854,765            1,055,365          10,455,337            9,803,019 



Town of Reading, Massachusetts
Municipal Light Department

Business Type Proprietary Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets 

11/30/2020 

Other Operating Expenses:

   403 Depreciation               391,601               377,166            4,307,606            4,148,826 
   408 Voluntary Payments to Towns               133,917               130,806            1,473,092            1,438,863 
      Total Other Expenses               525,518               507,972            5,780,698            5,587,689 
Operating Income               747,695             (104,161)            5,989,442            6,486,750 

Non Operating Revenues (Expenses):

    419 Interest Income                 13,741                 38,751               247,162               455,445 
    419 Other               110,008                 39,988            1,296,764            1,063,779 
    426 Return on Investment to Reading             (206,709)             (206,709)          (2,273,797)          (2,273,797)
    426  Loss on Disposal 0 0 0 0 
    431 Interest Expense                 (2,279)                 (1,384)               (46,748)               (28,388)
      Total Non Operating Revenues (Expenses)               (85,238)             (129,354)             (776,620)             (782,962)
Change in Net Assets               662,457             (233,516)            5,212,822            5,703,788 

Net Assets at Beginning of Year        116,708,946        112,389,809        116,708,946        112,389,809 

Ending Net Assets        117,371,403        112,156,293        121,921,767        118,093,597 



Town of Reading, Massachusetts
Municipal Light Department

Business Type Proprietary Fund
Statement of Budgeted Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets 

11/30/2020

 Actual  Budget  OVER/ OVER/ 
YTD NOV 2020 Through NOV 2020  (UNDER) $ (UNDER) %

Operating Revenues

    Base Revenue $ 25,420,764 $ 26,620,677  $  (1,199,913) (4.5%)
    Fuel Revenue              23,419,518            25,724,947      (2,305,428) (9.0%)
    Purchased Power Capacity & Transmission              29,992,222            34,567,145      (4,574,923) (13.2%)
    Forfeited Discounts                   750,337                 798,620           (48,283) (6.0%)
    Energy Conservation Revenue                   593,436                 603,793           (10,356) (1.7%)
    NYPA Credit                 (970,862)            (1,043,186)             72,324 (6.9%)
      Total Operating Revenues              79,205,416            87,271,995      (8,066,579) (9.2%)

Expenses

Power Expenses:

   555  Purchased Power Fuel              23,146,673            24,681,761      (1,535,088) (6.2%)
   555  Purchased Power Capacity              16,754,980            20,585,713      (3,830,732) (18.6%)
   565  Purchased Power Transmission              13,001,277            13,981,433         (980,156) (7.0%)
      Total Purchased Power              52,902,930            59,248,906      (6,345,976) (10.7%)

Operations and Maintenance Expenses:

   580  Supervision and Engineering                   929,647              1,033,879         (104,232) (10.1%)
   581  Station/Control Room Operators                   444,043                 436,921               7,122 1.6%
   582  Station Technicians                   377,588                 497,868         (120,281) (24.2%)
   583  Line General Labor                   517,043                 362,895           154,149 42.5%
   585  Street Lighting 0                   67,021           (67,021) (100.0%)
   586  Meter General                   131,155                 133,368             (2,213) (1.7%)
   588  Materials Management                   392,107                 462,452           (70,345) (15.2%)
   593  Maintenance of Lines - Overhead                   287,639                 919,722         (632,083) (68.7%)
   593  Maintenance of Lines - Tree Trimming                   444,961                 824,166         (379,205) (46.0%)
   594  Maintenance of Lines - Underground                     44,257                 103,208           (58,950) (57.1%)
   595  Maintenance of Line - Transformers                   159,604                 204,818           (45,215) (22.1%)
   598  Line General Leave Time Labor                   348,966                 521,738         (172,772) (33.1%)
      Total Operations and Maintenance Expenses                4,077,010              5,568,055      (1,491,045) (26.8%)

General & Administration Expenses:

   902  Meter Reading                       1,397                   19,470           (18,073) (92.8%)
   903  Customer Collection                1,180,083              1,083,056             97,027 9.0%
   904  Uncollectible Accounts                     96,250                   96,250 0 0.0%
   916  Energy Audit                   558,374                 593,559           (35,185) (5.9%)
   916  Energy Conservation                   662,809                 878,868         (216,059) (24.6%)
   920  Administrative and General Salaries                1,839,504              1,934,105           (94,602) (4.9%)
   921  Office Supplies and Expense                       6,491                   18,333           (11,842) (64.6%)
   923  Outside Services - Legal                   432,629                 456,867           (24,238) (5.3%)
   923  Outside Services - Contract                   273,212                 331,146           (57,934) (17.5%)
   923  Outside Services - Education                     38,386                 244,727         (206,341) (84.3%)
   924  Property Insurance                   353,644                 401,042           (47,398) (11.8%)
   925  Injuries and Damages                       3,723                   23,467           (19,744) (84.1%)
   926  Employee Pensions and Benefits                3,210,451              3,377,430         (166,979) (4.9%)
   930  Miscellaneous General Expense                   219,671                 290,846           (71,174) (24.5%)
   931  Rent Expense                   191,159                 194,333             (3,174) (1.6%)
   933  Vehicle Expense                   186,695                 305,800         (119,105) (38.9%)
   933  Vehicle Expense - Capital Clearing                 (311,218)               (206,365)         (104,853) 50.8%
   935  Maintenance of General Plant                   484,699                 361,570           123,129 34.1%
   935  Maintenance of Building & Garage                1,027,378                 833,140           194,238 23.3%
      Total General & Administration Expenses              10,455,337            11,237,644         (782,307) (3.5%)



Town of Reading, Massachusetts
Municipal Light Department

Business Type Proprietary Fund
Statement of Budgeted Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets 

11/30/2020

Other Operating Expenses:

   403  Depreciation                4,307,606              4,339,500           (31,894) (0.7%)
   408  Voluntary Payments to Towns                1,473,092              1,482,855             (9,763) (0.7%)
      Total Other Expenses                5,780,698              5,822,355           (41,657) (0.7%)

Operating Income                5,989,442              5,395,035           594,406 11.0%

Non Operating Revenues (Expenses):

    419  Interest Income                   247,162                 320,833           (73,672) (23.0%)
    419  Other Income                1,296,764                 779,167           517,597 66.4%
    426  Return on Investment to Reading              (2,273,797)            (2,273,797)                      0 (0.0%)
    426  Loss on Disposal 0                 (91,667)             91,667 (100.0%)
    431  Interest Expense                   (46,748)                 (22,917)           (23,832) 104.0%
      Total Non Operating Revenues (Expenses)                 (776,620)            (1,288,381)           511,761 (39.7%)

Net Income                5,212,822              4,106,655        1,106,167 26.9%



INTEGRATED RESOURCES REPORT 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT 4 

  



Board of Commissioners 
Meeting 
January 20, 2021

Charles Underhill, 
Director of Integrated 
Resources



0

10,000,000

20,000,000

30,000,000

40,000,000

50,000,000

60,000,000

70,000,000

80,000,000

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

2020 RMLD Total System Loads

ENE Forecast 2019 Actual 2020 Actual



$0

$1,000,000

$2,000,000

$3,000,000

$4,000,000

$5,000,000

$6,000,000

$7,000,000

Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

RMLD Purchase Power Expense 
Budget Versus Actual Through 

November, 2020

Budget Actual Cumulative Differential



RMLD TFA Transactions
December 30, 2020 

(MWHs) 2021 2022

January 10,320.8 0.0 

February 3,155.2 0.0 

March 1,870.8 1,387.5 

April 846.4 460.8 

May 6,254.4 1,672.8 

June 5,339.2 0.0 

July 0.0 0.0 

August 1,646.4 0.0 

September 1,728.0 1,305.6 

October 0.0 0.0 

November 1,925.0 0.0 

December 14,969.6 8,323.2 

Total 48,055.8 13,149.9 

700,000.0 700,000.0 

6.9% 1.9%

($'s) 2021 2022

January $371,549 $0 

February $113,587 $0 

March $67,349 $49,950 

April $30,470 $16,589 

May $225,158 $60,221 

June $192,211 $0 

July $0 $0 

August $59,270 $0 

September $62,208 $47,002 

October $0 $0 

November $69,300 $0 

December $538,906 $299,635 

Total $1,730,009 $473,396 



ENGINERING & OPERATIONS REPORT 

 

 

ATTACHMENT 5 

 

  



ENGINEERING & OPERATIONS REPORT

RMLD Board of Commissioners
RMLD Citizens’ Advisory Board

January 20, 2021



RMLD Reliability Indices



Other: (1) corroded connect; (2-3) fire (4) house fire; (5) power cut due to gas leak
Unknown: (1) burnt fuse; (2) two blown cutouts; (3) blown cutout; (4) inside problem; (5) blown cutout; (6) 4W4 operation



SERVICE 
REQUIREMENTS 
HANDBOOK 
UPDATES

IRD PROGRAMS

CONTRACTOR SERVICE REQUIREMENTS

IRD INCENTIVES

PRIMARY METERING

ENGINEERING IMPROVEMENTS

DISTRIBUTED ENERGY RESOURCES



Service Requirements Handbook Key Revisions

URDs (No Change): Developer to pay for transformer and cable installation including 
termination/elbows.

Non-URDs (i.e. Commercial/Industrial, Mixed Use, Apartment Buildings): RMLD to provide transformer(s) 
for all customers up to and including 750 kva transformation. Customer to pay for 
primary cable plus labor. 

Primary Metering:  RMLD discretion on primary metering evaluation consists of the 
following guidelines, but not limited to:

◦ Over 1500 KVA load single or cumulative
◦ One account
◦ RMLD’s discretion (i.e., difficult to access, long primary distribution, etc.)  



Service Manual Handbook
IRD PROGRAMS

CONTINUE TO PROMOTE 
ENERGY EFFICIENCY
CONTINUE ENVIORNMENTAL 
AWARENESS

PROMOTE ELECTRIFICATION

 PROMOTE Electrification Program Incentives 
through rebates.
 Heat pumps
 EV charges
 Panel Upgrades 
 Outside Appliances

 Best Utility Business Practices



7

Thank You

Question?

http://www.animationfactory.com/en/search/close-up.mc?&oid=4939411&s=101&sc=101&st=343&category_id=E153&spage=5&hoid=233016dd14837fb9213fdc6d5de4aa6f


PROCUREMENT REQUESTS 

 

 

Attachment 6 

  








	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	ADP2533.tmp
	Board of Commissioners Meeting �January 20, 2021
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3

	RMLD BoC CAB Session 3 educate for 20 Jan 2021 final.pdf
	Session 3 of Education for RMLD BoC and CAB - Policy 30 Update

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	January BOC Meeting E&O Slides-January 2021.pdf
	ENGINEERING & OPERATIONS REPORT���RMLD Board of Commissioners�RMLD Citizens’ Advisory Board���January 20, 2021
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	SERVICE REQUIREMENTS HANDBOOK UPDATES����
	Service Requirements Handbook Key Revisions
	Service Manual Handbook�IRD PROGRAMS
	Thank You




